IN THE MATTERS OF

FRM Chem, Inc., ef al.

Advanced Products Technology, Inc,, ef al.
Synisys, Inc., ef al.

Custom Compounders, Inc., ef al.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 7 10806 17 MmN 0o
901 NORTH 5™ STREET -
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101 " sy o i o
REGIOHAL HEARING CLERK

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR

Docket Nos. FIFRA-07-2008-0035
FIFRA-07-2008-0036
FIFRA-07-2009-0041
FIFRA-07-2009-0042

Respondents

COMPLAINANT’S SUPPLEMENTAL PREHEARING EXCHANGE

Comes now the Complainant and makes the following supplement to its pre-hearing
exchange, filed January 15, 2010 pursuant to the order dated December 2, 2009.

L. Exhibits

67.

68,

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

Exhibits 67-74 pertain o counts 5-9 in the Matier of
Advanced Products Technology, Inc., ef al, FIFRA-07-2008-0036,
added in the First Amended Complaint, filed June 3, 2010

Packing Slip No. 11354 — shipment to Franklin County Humane Society
Packing Slip No. 11355 — shipment to Franklin County Humane Society
Packing Siip No. 11364 — shipment to Franklin County Humane Society
Packing Slip No. 11376 — shipme;nt to Franklin County Humane Society
Packing Slip No. 11385 - shipment to Franklin County Humane Society

Questionnaire returned to EPA Region 7 from Franklin County Humane Society
July 24, 2009

Email communication to EPA from Karen Tudor, August 4, 2009

Article from Animal Sheltering magazine included as an attachment to email
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communaication to EPA from Karen Tudor, August 4, 2009

75. Email communication to EPA from Karen Tudor, August 4, 2009, with
photograph of Brite San 75 product label .

76.  Email communication to EPA from Karen Tudor, August 4, 2009, with
photograph of “Sodium Hypochlorite Solution” product label

77.  Packing slip No. 11367 — shipment to Franklin County Humane Society

II. Penalty Calculation Memorandum

A revised penalty calculation narrative for the Respondents in the Matter of Advanced
Products Technology, Inc., ef al., FIFRA-07-2008-0036, prepared by Mark Lesher, EPA Case
Review Officer, is attached to this prehearing exchange.

111, Other Matters

In establishing its case, Complainant requests the right to call all witnesses called by
Respondent and to use all documentary evidence submitted by Respondent,

Complainant requests that, after reasonable notice and opportunity for review, the
Presiding Officer admit into evidence any additional testimonial or documentary evidence that is
relevant or material to the case.

Respectfully submitted,

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Wl L 2

CHRIS R. DUDDING

Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
901 North 5" Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

(913) 551-7524

ATTORNEY FOR COMPLAINANT
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PACKJ‘NG'SLIP ' .
- PAGE 1.
" ADVANGED PRODUCTS TECHNOLOGY
: P.O, BOX 1656
_ WASHINGTON MO 63090
PHONE: 1-636-583-4360
FAX: 1- 636—583-5218

- 1 ‘ 291050

SHIP TO: FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY | FRANKLIN-CO HUMANE SOCIETY
PO BOX 400 : - 'POBOX 400"
© 1222 W MAIN ST ‘
UNION, MO 63084 UNION MO 63084

ORDERED REQUESTED - P.O.# _ SHPVIA F.0.B: SLSMM -
/27/2008 © 1/27/2009 o APT © PLANT HSE
LINE HAZARDOUS ~ QTY ORD UM . PARTNO  DESCRIPTION - WEIGHT.

1 X , 1.00 EA 1004024000 SODIUM HYPO 85 GAL DRUM 580

2 1,00 CS, 1081104000 BRITE DISH CS 4/1 GAL 36

3 2.00 CS 1124104080  LIQUID ENZYMES 4/1 GAL 70

4 2.00 EA 1817012000 °DOUBLE POWER 5 GAL PAIL 94

5 1.00 EA 2017072000 BRITE SUDS504BOX 52

TOTAL WEIGHT: 832

Exhibit 67
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- ADVANCED PRODUCTS TECHNOLOGY

JSHIP TO: FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY

PO BOX 400 PO. BOX 400
1222 W MAIN ST _
| UNION, MO 63084 UNION MO 53084'
ORDERED REQUESTED -  p.0. & SHIP VIA  F.0.B
2/03/2009 - 2/03/2008 APT PLANT
LINE HAZARDOUS.  QTY ORD UM  PART NO. DESCRIPTION ‘
1 : | ‘ " B/0 FROM INV #224144
2 X 1.00EA . 1004024000 SODIUM HYPO'55 GAL DRUM
3 . ' 3.00EA 2017072000 BRITE SUDS 50% BOX -
oo 1.00CS. 1124104080 LIGUID ENZYMES 4/1 GAL
5 1.00EA 1817012000 DOUBLE. POWER 5 GAL PATL
8 L FREIGHT
TOTAL WEIGHT:
; _

P.0. BOX 1858
WASHINGTDN MO 83090
PHONE ;" 1-836-583-4360
FAX; 1-836-583-5218 .

291050

W
N

‘PAGE

FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY

1135¢
1

e - e

818
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R . PACKINGSLIP. - No. 11384
: . ! : . PAGE 1
ADVANCED PRODUGTS TEGHNOLOGY -
~ P.0.BOX 1656
© WASHINGTON MO 63090
PHONE: 1-636-583-4360
FAX: 1-636-583-5218°
I : : 291050 - . - .
SHIP TO: FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY. FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY
POBOX400 - | PO BOX 400° S
1222 WMAIN ST - .
UNJON, MO 53084 UNION MO 63084
ORDERED ~ REQUESTED  -P.O.%. " SHIPVIA FoB. SLSMN °
3/25/2008 . 3/25/2009 | APT . PLANT " HsE
LINE HAZARDOUS ~ QTYORD- UM PARTNO  DESCRIPTION WEIGHT =
1 2300 GS 1124104080  LIQUID ENZYMES 4/1 GAL 105
2 3.00 EA 1817012000 DOUBLE POWER 5 GAL PAIL . ., 141
3 200 EA 2017072000  BRITE SUDS 504 BOX - 104
4 200 EA 5001126 55 GAL USED DRUM 44 .
5 X 100 EA 1004024000 SODIUM HYPO 55 GAL DRUM 580
TOTALWEIGHT: 674 -
. ’ . ) . i 0 - . ’ . - .
BT . o : B My
| %< : ,WW\SMVW )
. (‘\\fh

Exhibit 69
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5/;{/{‘)3.‘41;) |
l PACKING SLIP . . . NO. 11378
.. - . PAGE 1
ADVANCED PRODUCTS TEGHNOLOGY
' P.O.BOX 1658 :
WASHINGTON MO 63090
PHONE: 1-536-583-4360
FAX: 1-636-583-5218
SO B 291050 S
SHIP TO: FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SQCIETY
PO BOX 400 ' PO BOX 400 '
1222 W MAIN ST ’
UNION, MO 63084 UNION MO 63084
ORDERED . REQUESTED ~  P.O.# . SHIP ViA . FOB. SLSMN
5/27/2009  5/27/2009 “APT . PLANT - . HSE
LINE HAZARDOUS ~ QTYORD UM  PARTNO  DESCRIPTION WEIGHT
1 1,00 CS ~ 102604200 . BRITE SAN 75 CS 4/1 GL | 3’
2 100 CS 1081104000 BRITE DISH CS 4/1 GAL 36
3 200 CS 1124104080  LIQUID ENZYMES 4/1 GAL .70
4 300°EA 1817012000 DOUBLE POWER 5 GAL PAIL 141
5 , 200 EA 2017072000 BRITESUDS 50#BOX 104
8 X _ 1.00 EA 1004024000 SODIUM HYPO 55 GAL DRUM 580
7 - : " FREIGHT-
TOTAL WEIGHT: = . . %67

e

Exhibit 70




PACKING SLIP

- ADVANGED PRODUCTS TECHNOLOGY

- P.O. BOX 1656 -
WAS_'HINGTON-MO 83090
PHONE; 1-836-583-4360

FAX: 1-636-583-5218

291050

11385

PAGE 1

SHIP TO: FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOGIETY  FRANKLIN CO HUMANE SOCIETY
- PO BOX 400 ' PO BOX400 o
1222 W MAIN ST -
UNION, MO 63084 - UNION MO 63084 -

'ORDERED ~ REQUESTED P.O.# SHPVIA ~ ~ F.0B. © SLSMN
771412000 701412000 | APT PLANT HSE
LINE HAZARDOUS ~ QTYORD: UM’ PARTNO  DESCRIPTION | WEIGHT

K 200 CS 1124104080  LIQUID ENZYMES 4/1 GAL 70
2 200 EA 1817012000 DOUBLE POWER 5 GAL PAIL - 04
3 = 300 EA 2017072000 BRITE SUDS 50# PAIL 156
4 1.00 CS 1081104000 BRITEDISHCS4/1GAL 36.°
5 X . 100 EA - 1004024000 SODIUM HYPO 55 GAL DRUM. 580

TOTAL WEIGHT:

4

936
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PLEASE ANSWER THESE QUESTIONS FULLY AND TO THE BEST OF YOUR |
ABILITY AND RETURN IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED TO: "

U.S. Environmental Protectlon Agency, chlon 7
Attn: Mark K. Lesher,
FIFRA Enforcement Officer
901 N. 5™ Street -
Kansas City, . KS 66101 '

) Has the Franklin County Humane Soc1cty purchased or reccwed a product
labeled or advertised as either 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite solution or FRM Chior 1250
from any of the follcwmg companies: FRM Chem., Inc.; Advanced Products :
Technology; Custom Compounders; V L Clark Chcmical; or Synisys, Inc.; or from any
of the following individuals: Raymond Kastendieck, Keith Kastendieck, Karlen s

Kastendieck ‘or Ann Kastendicek? 7 IN)

(2) If yes, please list the products and da’ces purchased or rece1ved and name and address

_ of the company or individual from which the product ar products were purchased or” =~ -
received. (Please include a copy of the product label(s) if available, and list amounts

purchased or rccc1ved on each date, being as specific as you can — aﬁach copies of

Cogun_of el nusiees Ghe
&,Dbo\ aflechad e cjrhéx's e ded
C;cw\ Qxe:i/ “H\Zaaec | ) L

(3) If the answer to question I above is “yes,” please explain in dctaﬂ the mtended use of
the prochict as represented to you by the provider (For example, was the product mtended ]
asa “cleancr”? A “samﬁzer”? A “bieachmg agent”? Another use?). - :

Thank you for your time and effort in filling out thls questlonnaue and provzdmg EPA
w1tb any addmonal information. A .
TOPE Rec'd JUL"2 4 2503

(if extra'space is ncedcd to respond, attach additional pages)

Exhibit 72




) Page -I of 3
Tiv:_BIeac'h -
laren
o:
~hris Dudding
18/04/2009 12:27 PM
c: o
Aark Lesher
‘how Details

listory: This message has been replied to.
leflo, Mr. Dudding -
hotos will come in another email shortly.

1 answer to your questions, "Disinfection Conneétion” from WWW.aniIﬁalsheltering.org attached, (see page 12 on
e printed pages when you download it) is the Bible for shelter cleaning, with bleach being the standard.

*you Google Search on "animal shelter cleaning bleacﬁ,“ you will see many, many more references to bleach uses in
1imal shelters, such as referenced below. :

verything we were ever told by Mr. Kastandieck and the company was totally consistent with the information
resented here. Additional emphasis was always made by them on the requirement that any organic material be
:moved first, that is, scrubbed off using a soap/detergent agent and then rinsed, prior to bleaching or using Brite San,
-d leaving it on for 10 minutes before rinsing. Also, they made it very clear to us that when we dilute bleach to the
-oper dilution, the spray bottles should be emptied and refilled the next day, not used for a month,

have done quite a few hours of research answering your questions (see below), and I would appreciate it if you
suld make a donation to our not-for-profit shelter in recognition of these efforts. If you are willing, please access

ir website at www.franklincountyhumanesociety.org to make an online donation, or mail it to my attention at
CHS, PO Box 400, Union, MO 63084. ‘

1anks very much, and here is what you asked for (the attachment is the best resource, please look at it first)

aren Tudor, Director

ik Rk .
xcerpts with original URL) shelter standards for cleaning:

each (Sodium hypochlorite)

o ttp://www.sheitennedicine.com/p. értallis_cleahmg.shtml '

» Member of halogen family of disinfectants, which also includes iodine and related products.

o 5% solution diluted at 1:32 (1/2 cup per gallon) completely inactivates parvo, panleukopenia and calicivirus -
when used correctly. Most household bleach is 5%. "Ultrableach” contains a slightly higher percentage of -
sodium hypochlorite, but may be safely used at the same dilution as 5% household bleach, To determine the
dilution of bleach solution containing other concentrations of sodium hypochlorite, use our handy "bleach -

calculator”. . i

o Inactivates ringworm at higher concentrations and with repeated application.
ded storage: should be stored for limiteéd time in

o Significantly inactivated by organic matter, light and exten

light-proof containers.
- Exhibit 73
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"« Low tissue toxicity, but fumes can be irritating at high concentration and bleach is éorrosive_ to metal.

o Hard water reduces effectiveness - , _ ' )
o Bleach has no detergent action, and can not be used as the sole cleaning agent in a shelter, Disinfection with

bleach requires prior cleaning of the surface with a detergent.

rtp://WW.animalsheltéring.prg/resourcemlibrary/magazmeHarticles/jul_éugﬁQOOllavoiding _poisonous potions.htm!

'he introduction of a new bleach product called Ultra Clorox sparked much debate last year, after a mass e-mailing -
ramed those who work with animals to avoid the disinfectant "at all costs™ because it contains lye, also known as
sdium hydroxide. Since then, many have dismissed the warning because sodium hydroxide was present in ther
riginal Clorox solution and is in fact an element of all household bleach products. But Ultra Clorox is much more
oncentrated; the labeling recommends using 25 percent less in laundry loads. Therefore, amounts used in shelters
sed to be adjusted, says Becky Rhoades, DVM, interim executive director of the Kauai Humane Society in
‘anapepe, Hawaii. Recommended dilution has long been one part bleach to 32 parts water (¢.g., 2 mix of two ounces
f bleach for every gallon of water), but with Ultra Clorox, dilution should be one part bleach to 43 parts water.-

v Correction on Dilution Solutions

. careful reader in New Mexico has alerted us to a mistake in the July-August 2001 issue of Animal Sheltering. Ina discussion of
-commended dilutions for bleach products, we gave the correct rates—1 part bleach to 32 parts water for regular bleach and 1
art bleach to 43 parts water for the more concentrated products such as Ultra Clorox—but failed to recognize that there are, in

act, 128 ounces in a gallon.

[: casually implies that a 1:32 bleach solution is 2 ounces of bleach raised to I gallon with water," writes Anthony Guillén,
wilities manager at the Santa Fe Animal Shelter & Humane Society. "It's actually 4 ounces." '

willen is right: The recommended dilution rate of 1 part bleach to 32 parts water is equivalent to four ounces per gallon. Animal

heltering editors regret the error and are grateful to Guillen for taking the time to let us know. :

ttp ://mvw.'animalsheltering._org/resource_library/policies_and_guidelines/guidelines_for_animal_sheIter_operaﬁons.htmi

leaning

1. All kennels, cages, and runs must be cleaned daily with hot water and a broad-spectrum disinfectant proven to be effective
against various bacteria and viruses common in a shelter environment (inchiding distemper and parvovirus). Each enclosure
should be cleaned, scrubbed, and disinfected BEFORE a new animal enters. As an alternative, chlorine bleach (mixed with

- water in a 1:32 dilution) can be used. ' _ :

2. Mix disinfectants according to specific manufacturer instructions. After application, allow the disinfectant to remain in

contact with the surface for the length of time recommended by the manufacturer before rinsing.

Do not expose animals to water or disinfectant. During cleaning, place all animals in separate holding areas or in carriers;

animals should never be lef} in the cage or kenmel. Make sure enclosures are completely dry before animals are returned to

them. ' ' L : ,

4, Clean the kennels and cages from floor to ceiling, and scrub cage doors and similar surfaces manually. It is false
economy—and a potential source of infection—to clean the walls of a run only to the height of the dog inhabiting the run.

If any one section of the shelter is left unsanitized, disease can be easily transmitted.

S. The recommended daily cleaning routine is as follows: . : )
a. Remove the animal from the run or cage and place him in a separate holding area or carrier, then remove bedding,
toys, and all food and water containers. ' ' .
b, Remove all solid waste such as feces and hair. Do not hose solid wast¢ into the drainage system; rinse away only

* urine with water.

(V3]
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Page 3 of 3

1

Wash enclosures using a high pressure sprayer, steam-cleaning machine, or long-handled, stiff-bristled scrub brush.
Using a scrub brush and a solution of detergent/disinfectant, scrub all surface$ within the enclosure including the
floor, sides, resting board, top, and gate, according to specific manufacturer instructions. )
Allow the solution to stand for at least 20 minutes (or the length of time recommended by the manufacturer).

Thoroughly rinse all surfaces with a steady stream of water (preferably hot).
Dry the run or cage as completely as possible using a squeegee or rag. If possible, ventilate the area prior to returmng

o

animals to it.
Clean and disinfect beds, toys, food dishes, and water bowls.

Clean and disinfect cat Litter boxes.
Clean and disinfect the holding area or carier aﬁer each animal has been removed,

Clean and disinfect the euthanasia room. -

Clean and disinfect other areas used by animals.
Clean all areas used by the staff and public. Because bacteria can accumulate and lead to disease and odor problems,

be sure to regularly clean and disinfect other areas, including the aisles, walls, and ceilings.

5:—-‘??“:“:—«?3" o

Thank You, Karen Tudor

:/C:\Documents and Settings\CDUDDING\Local Settmgs\Temp\nbtesFCBCEE\~web5929.htm ' 3/9/201@
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\S\NFECTING

- The Product Claim Camé

Navigating the world of disinfectants, one bottle at a time

T HE MICROBIAL MONSTERS HAVE INVADED, You can't
see themn or hear themn multiplying themselves into infinity,

2 starting in the cat room and the diarrhea showing up in the
kenmels. If your eyes possessed the power of an electron microscope,
you rright even be able to spy thern flying out of the noses and mouths
and other excreting extremities of your furry charges. .

Just the idea of it is encugh to make you want to turn to the bat-
tle—the disinfectant bottle, that is.

But which one should you choose? Which one witl be safe for you,
your animals, and your equipment, while still remaining effective
enough to stave off the army of bugs? After you've already mapped
out consistent standard operating procedures that include important
disease control feasures—isolation of sick animals, separation of
healthy ones, proper ventilation, and the like—you've still got anoth-
er maze of questions to navigate.

Before actually attemnpting to select a product, however, it helps to
kniow how a “disinfectant” officfally earns its name in the first place.
‘The Environimental Protection Agency categorizes disinfectants as pes-
ticides that destroy or inactivate infectious fungl and bacteria; many
disinfectants also kill viruses, but claims of virucidal activity “must be
restricted to those viruses which have actually been tested,” according
to agency regulations. The EPA scrutinizes test results and other in-
formation to ensure labeling aceuracy, weed out misleading state-
ments, and clarify instructions for use; agency regulations dictate ev-
erything from minimum application times on surfaces to acceptable
artwork on the bottle label.

Other government agencies have a hand in the regfsn'ar_ion, la-
beling, and production process of chermical cleaning solutions, Lig-
uid chemical sterilants, which kill all microscopic ffe forms except
prions {the infectious prateins responsible for mad cow disease), are
used in food production facilities and on medical equipment—and
are therefore under the purview of the Food and Drug Administra-

tion. The FDA also governs registration and approval of germicidal
products that are used directly on animals for pest-contro! purpos-
es. And to-make matters even more confusing, even though the EFA
registers hard-surface disinfectants, a third agency, the Cecupation-
al Health and Safety Administration, oversees the “materlals safety

data sheets” that advise product users of the hazards of cerfain chem-

icals and the precautions they should take.

It’s ajungte cut there, with enough acronyms and regulations and
claims to make your head spin. But it’s worth the trouble to try to sort
through sorne af it; learning a Httle bitabout how a product gets to the
market will help you research whether you actually want to buy it.

but you can sense thern in the presence of the little sneezes .

Oh Where, Oh Where Did My Parvo Claim Go?

Besides, the maze Is considerably more rmanageable when you realize
that for the purposes of cleaning the shelter, products registered with
the EPA are the only ones you need to corcern yourself with, EPA-
registered disinfectants include some kinds of bleach, quaternary amn-
menium compounds, and many things in between. And even if the
manufacturer doesn't post encugh information about its product ont
the Web or elsewhere for public consurnption, chances are you'll be
able to use EPA search engines to find labeling information and oth-
er docurrents before making a purchase. {See "Great Points in the Fine
Print” on page 20 for more informatior.)

Undeubtedly, your most pressing question about a productwﬂI be:
What does it kill? Shelters and other animal protection organizations
have lang used quaternary ammontumn compounds and bleach—and
thase arestill mainstays of the antmal care environment. It's true that
bleachis unstahle and corrosive, and quats, as they are commonly called,
are limited in their efficacy against the most resistant viruses. Butmost

of the other avallable chemicals are not effective enaugh or simply too

unsafe; products containing phenols asynthetic chernical once derived
from ceal tar and now found in some Lysol disinfectants and other so-
lutions, can be fatal to cats who ingest even a small amount.

In the search for an ideal solutiorr—chemical and otherwise—to
disease control, many people aver the last 15 years have Jatched onto
products claiming parvocidat qualities. Introduced in the late 80s,
these disinfectants were hailéd as the next great thing in shelter disin-
fection; the canine parvovirus had already shown an amazing ability
to devastate kennel populations. Its virulence was something to be
feared, and resistance often seemed futile. Disinfectant sellers who
prommised to change all that were, of course, a source of great hope.

But a few years later, the Jouwnal of the American Animal Hospital
Association (JAAHA) published a study countering some of the vifu-
cidal clatms of quats. In “Virucidal Efficacy of the Newer Quaternary
Ammonium Compounds” (May/June 1995, Vol. 31}, researchers at
the University of Tennessee's College of Veterinary Medicine tested
several products and found that only two out of four quats cornpletely
inactivated feline herpesvirus, none completely inactivated feline cali-
civirus, and none even significantly inactivated canine parvovirus.

By 1997, parvoeidal clatms began to disappear from battle labels,
leavinga trail of confusion in their wake: while some cornpanies were
quick to react to the mounting body of literature questioning the ef-
ficacy of quats against parvoviruses, others were stower to back away
from old promises. If you ask ten different people exactly what un-
falded during that perfod, you get ten different answers, but essen-
tially what happened is this: Huntington Laboratories, at the time one

24 Animat Sheltering / July-August 2003 www.animalsheftering.org
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of several quaternary ammontum makers, began to question whether

. it was wise to continue trying to substantiate its clatms In light of new
evidence that contradicted them. New practices were being introduced
in EPA-approved testing laboratories around the country, and old test-
ing standards had come under scrutinty industrywide.

At the same time, the FPA was undergolng a “reregistration pro-
cess” of antimicrobial products that required manufacturers to sub-
it new data, says Ruth Trager, manager of marketing and product
development for Lonza Inc., the company that bought Huntington
Labs in 1986. Retesting previously approved products fo substantiate
old claims would be expensive—prohibitively so for a product that
was likely to fail the newer tests anyway. Even though the EPA hadn't
even come near the quats yet (and still hasn't 15 years later, according
to Trager}, companies began anticipating the implications of reregis-
tration and reconsidering their options.

And in the face of the new data, it probably wasn't worth the ef-
fort and expense to try fo justify parvocidal claims that had already
been disproven; thus, Huntington voluntarily pulled the parvovirus
claim from its product. The move launched a domnino effect among
“suibregistrants”—compantes that had been setting the Huntington
formuda under their own brand names.

“Basically, all these companies, inciuding us, in 1989 had put our

name on a quat formudation that had a parve claim,” says Chrts Quin-.

lan of Animal Health Technology in Riverside, California. “So T used
to go to the trade shows and say, "Why do you pay so much for Par-
vosol? My product’s the same thing. And I could show them on the
label that it was the exact same active Ingredient.”

But soon enough, Quirtan lost that selling point, when he and oth-
er subregistrants received letters from Huntington telling them to re-
move the dlaim from thelr bottles. The companies were forced to com-
ply; by law, their labels had to be identicat to that of the master registrant.

But if distributors like Quinlan were disappointed by the loss of
the parvo claim, shelters were probably even more so, espectally since
that wasn't the end of the story. Parvacidal claims were disappearing
only selectively; other companies that did not subregister but instead
made their own formulas—or used those of other quat manufactur-
ers—dld not have to remove the claim.

And therein lay the confusion, with scme quats claiming parvo-
cidat qualities and others suddenly backing away from the subject al-

together.

The Virus That Won’t Die?

Unraveling the mystery and history of parvocidat clalms—and ex-
ploring their current status—is easier if you understand why such em-
phasis is placed on the ability to deactivate parvovirus In the first place.
I a nutshell, parvovicus is fike a nutshell: difficult to crack with com-
mon disinfectants. '

All viruses consist of a plece of nucleic acid, or genetic material, usa-
ally surrounded by a protein coat. But sorne, such as canine disternper,
have yet ancther layer—a fatty "envelope” that makes them more vul-
nerable to common disinfectants, says virologist Leon Potgleter, a pro-

fessor at the University of Tennessee who co-authored the 1895 JAA-
HA study of quats and has conducted other research on disinfectants.

Ongce that layer breaks down in the face of chernicals, the virus's
genetic material might still be intact, but it has lost its ability to do
damage, says Potgleter, That's because the fatty layer houses the mech-
anisms that alfow the virus to attach itself to a host cell and wreak hav-
oc. Without that layer, the virus can no longer replicate.

Attachment mecharisms for parvovirus and calicivirus, on the oth-
er hand, are cantained inside the protein coat, which is much more
resistant to disinfectants. These are “nonenveloped” viruses that can
stand their ground in the presence of typical quaternary ammonium
compounds diluted at the usual two-cunce-per-gallon rate.

“Tn our results—we've [tested)] this several Himes—there jsno sin-
gle quaternary ammanium compound that does much agatnst par- -
voviruses or caliciviruses, both quite resistant viruses,” says Potgieter,
whose need to completely disinfect in the lab is critical to the integri-
ty of his experiments. “So we stayed with bleach.”

. A study led by one of Potgleter’s graduate students and published
last year in JAAHA compared several different disinfectants and found
again that the quaternary ammonium compound was not effective
against feline calicivirus or feline panleukopenia, a kind of parvovirus
(“Virucidal Efficacy of Four New Disinfectants,” May/June 2002, Vol.
38). Sodiurn hypochlorite, or bleach, served as a controt and killed all
the viruses tested, including calicivirus, panleukopenta, and feline her-
pesvirus. Chicrine dioxide, a difficult-to-mix chernical that's not rec-
ommended for the shelter environment, and potassium peroxy-
monosulfate, a potentlally promising new import used during
England s foot-and-mouth disease epldemic, campletely Inactivated
afl three viruses.

But if quats doni't kill parvo at 2 ounces per gallon, how did the
parvocidal claims ever come about In the first place? Potgieter sus-

-pects they were the result of testing that didn't adequately mimic a re-

al-life situation. “To be able to grow parvovirus, you need very healthy
cells,” he says. "And if you don't get rid of all the disinfectant in your
test material, the cells are not growing very well, and the virus won't

grow efther, So I'm sure that's what happened.”
A chapter of the reference manual Kirks Current Veterinary Ther-

apy that describes testing methods reaches a stmilar conclusion {*Dis-
infection and Antiseptic Use In Small Animal Practice,” Volume
XIB: “There are many variables that may affect the test outcome, in-
cluding the test organism used, the method of preparation of the or-
ganism, and the subeulture method used,” wrote Brenda C. Love and
Dwight C. Hirsh, “Test organistns may undergo spontaneous inacti-
vation on certain carriers, making the disinfectant appear more ef-

fective than it Is."

Where Does That Leave Us? _

But there Is hope for the p’arvccidai abilities of quats, which have long
been used because they are relatively safe for animals and staff and be-
cause, in spite of thefr inability to kill the strongest micrcorganisms
at low dilution rates, they carry broad-spectrum effectiveniess against
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many lkely contarninants.
In fact, ready to-use sprays carry EPA-registered parvocidal claims,
* though their high levels of active ingredient make them more expen-
sive to use than products that are dilutable with water. But in recent
years, manufacturers have begun retesting those dilutable solutions and
have discovered that just increasing the amounts poured into a bucket
of water makes afl the difference. "We found that, historically, quats have
not been effective against parvovirus in the published literature,” says
Trager. “But at high enough levels, {they are].”

The idea makes sense; after all, as an article in the April 2001 fssue
of Infection Controf Today noted, “The more concentrated the germi-
cide, the greater its killing capacity.” The higher concentration levels
sornetimes introduce a new set of problers, the article notes—name-
Iy, increased safety risks and a greater likelihcod that surfaces will be
damaged by repeated exposure to the disinfectant.

But Frager dismisses those concerns, noting that the quat Lonza is
planning to sell at a higher cunce-per-gallon ratio is strong enough
to kill parvo but not even as concentrated as the ready-to-use sprays
that are already on the market. Lonza's dilutable parvo-kilter is pend-
ing approval at the EPA, she says.

Animal Health Technology is already selling a simifar product, Ken-
nel Kare—and has been for several years. To kilf parvo, users must di-
lute it at 18 ounces per gallon; the higher dilution rate ensures there
{5 more active ingredient in the mixture, says Quinlan,

There is a drawback, he adds. The less you dilute a product, the
more you're paying per gallon, and Kennel Kare runs about $1.70 per
gallon when diluted-—considerably more than Animal Health Tech-
nology’s less concenirated product, Triple Tvo, which uses only two
ourices per gallon and costs about 20 cents a gallon when diletec.

~ Ready-to-use products are even more experisive—often prohibitively
so for some shelters. Depending on the company you buy it fromn, a
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ready-to-use spray can cost between $350 and $500 for a 53-gal-
tor dram, or $6 to $9 a gailon, says Lori Todd, kennel supervisor
f the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Animal Control Bureau in North
Carolina. But given the options, sorne facilities would rather pay
price than use bleach routinely. "It has been an acceptable
wpense;” says Todd, whose staff uses ready-to-use TB-Cide Quat
pray bottles for cleaning cat cages. “ prefer it over the bleach
use | have asthmna. .. The bleach irritates my lungs, so Tknew
going to irritate fthe cats’and the staff's] lungs.”

ploring the Unknown

e bright side of bleach, of course, is that if irritates the mi-
garisms far more than it irritates the macro ones, killing even
‘most resistant viruses {see “The Bleach Niche” on page 18). But
corresive, staining, and irritating qualities of sodium hypochio-
Tite have had many people searching for years for an alternative,

And the staff at Pharmacal Research Laboratories, 4 Connecticut-

based company, think they've found one in England. As another for-

mer subregistrant of Huntington, Pharmacal was disappointed when
it could no longer offer a dilutable parvoecidal quat. But the cornpany
recently began Jmportmg Virkon S, a disinfectant made of potasstum
peroxymonosulfate, because of its parvocidal claims and safety as-
surances. According to company Hterature, the chernical s not as caus-
tic as bleach, deesrr't stain clothing, and does its disinfecting job even
in the presence of feces and other orgarnic matter.

Used by a few shelters, the product has become increasingly pop-
ular in veterinary schools, says Potgleter, whose test results confirmed
the chemical'’s effectiveness against parvovirus and calicivirus (JAA-
HA, May/June 2002). In fact, Potgleter is considering converting to
Virken S in his own laboratory. |

Like the high-concentrate quats, however, Virken S also comnes at
a bit of a price: Buying it in ready-to-use packets of powder that can
be dumped into a gallon of water will cost you $1.95 a pop. Buylng it
in 10-pound pails makes it much cheaper—about 40 or 50 cents agal-
lon, says Pharmacal Quality Assurance Lab manager Tarnmy Marot-

ta Fleischer.
While she hasn't tested it out herself yet, vetermarian Kate Hurley is

" intrigued by the fact that Virkon S has been shown by company testing

to inactivate bacteria and vifuses on wood and other difficult surfaces,
“Bleach is the thing that kills everything reliably, but it does niot work
on something wood, on cracked concrete, on gravel, or in any of those
circurnstarices where you really might need to disinfect—you [could]
just spray bleach all day long, but it’s not going to do a bit of pocd,” says
Hurley, who is director of the Maddie's Shelter Medicine Program at
the University of California, Davis, School of Veterinary Medicine.

_ Inthose circumstances, if it’s not possible yet to take the ideal course
of action and ekirninate wooden surfaces, it might be prudent to try
scrubbing and then disinfecting with Virkon S, says Hurley.

 But, she adds, “Shelters [should] keep in mind to have disinfectable
surfaces because, for surfaces that you can't spray bleach on, ultimately,
there's just really no cther good answer for decontaminating thern
with ane of these really durable [pathogenic] agents.”
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Great Points in the Fine Print

Learning how to glean important information from a bottle label
can help you narrow your choices of available products. Here are a few tips on learning the lingo.

] O A BOTTLE LABEL IS BORM: You won't see a lot of ex-
= clemnatory language on a disinfectant because the government
| tightly controls the labeling (right down to making sure man-
= wfactarers don't put pictures of candy or playing children on
the bottle). If it's strong enough to be called a disinfectant, it's strong

0
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enough to require registration with the Environmental Protection

Agency, which issues detailed regutations poverning product descrip-
tons, claims, and directions for use, Manufacturers subrnit results
from experiments that attempt to mimic worst-case scenarios; if a
prodtice works even in the presence of orgartic matter, which can de-
crease the activity of disinfectants, it s usually listed as effective when
tested with 5-percent blood serumn added to the mix,

When a “master registrant,” or the maker of a formula, gains ap-
proval for its product from the EPA, other companies can “subregls-
ter” the formula. But the label on the subregistrant’s product must ex-
actly match the language already approved for the master registrant;
the only thing that can vary is the brand name,

YWHAT THE NUMBERS MEAM: If you can't find an EPA registration
number on the bottle, don't trust the product cledms, If you dofinda
numnber, you can glean a lot of information from it—as lonig as you
know what you're looking at.

For example, lef’s say you've just purchased Scrubby Scrub Kernel
Disinfectant/Cleaner from the Scrubby Serub Company, and you spot
the following line on the label: EPA REG. NO. 4321-56-89101. The
three components of that number each represent something different,
and the very existence of three parts already gives you a good clue; that
Serubhy Scrub is not the maker of the product-—dJust a distributor.

Here's why: The first section of an EPA registration number, in this
case, 4321, s always the company nurnber of the master registrant. The
second nurrtber, 56, is the preduct number, And the last number, 89101,
is the corpany number of the subregistrant. Armed with this infor-

mation, yout can research a product’s ective ingredients, find label in-

formation, and view correspondence from the EPA to the manufacturer
at http://oaspub.epa.gov/pestlabl/ppls. home. Even if you don't have a
product registration number but want to search by active ingredient or
by cornpany, the site wifl gulde you through the links required to do
that. {Once you do finally get to the point of viewing labels, you can use
the arTow buttons in the teolbar provided to Rip through pages.)

WHAT'S BEHIMD THE GLAINMS: Any clairns of disinfecdon activity
tnust be supported by test results from an EPA-approved laboratory.
Pisinfectants range from low-level to high-level, with the lowest killing
malnly bacteria, fungi, and the Jeast resistant viruses and the highest
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killing mast of the resistant microbes but not necessarily spores. Many
products are labeled as bactericidal, fungicidal, and virucidal; even if
they don't kill all the bugs out there, it’'s a good bet they' ! help you do
away with many. For each level of disinfection, explains Tammy Marot-
ta Fletscher of Pharmacal Research Laboratories, the EPA requires pred-
ucts to be tested againist certain organisms. For example, a disinfectant
generally has to be effective against the salmonella or staphylococcus
bacteria; if It's labeled as a hospital- or medical-grade disinfectant it
needs to be effective against the bacterium pseudoranas aeruginosa.
Virucidat claims are often based on the ability to kill pollovirus; prod-
ucts are also commonly tested against herpes simplex virus type 2,
Clatms about efficacy against other microorganisins, ranging from the
easy-to-kilt HIV to the more resistant parvovirus, need to be support-
ed with specific test results. .

Qccastonally when reading a label, you might netice the prod-
uct Is laheled to kill orly a specific strain of a virus or bac-
teriumn. That's because it's not possible to test against alt




the strains of disease-causing organisms, says Flefscher. “If your wentout
and you tested every single virus that was out there, you'd be spending

millions and millions of dollars on these things, and the EPA is very strict

as far as what you're allowed to put on your labels,” she says. “And ff you
have it tested against certain strains, you have to put that on your label”

For basle cleaning in the shelter, it'sa good idea to choose a prod-
uct that kills bacteria, fungi, and viruses. If the product is not labeled

to kill parvovirus, consider using bleach routinely (every other day or

twice aweek) or using one of the newer high-concentrate quaternary
ammoriurns as rescurces allow. (See “The Product Claim Game” on
page 14 for more inforrnation.)

_ WHY THE RECIPE MATTERS: Ina culture where every restaurant meal
has reached Hungry Man-sized portions and $70,000 mini-tanks are
the Iatest fad in vehicles, it's no surprise that people want to supersize
everything, even disinfectant solutions. “T've watched people waste en-
tirely too much because {they think] a fittle is good but a lot's better,”
says Lori Todd, kennel supervisor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Ani-
mat Control Bureau. “They think, "Wl it says an ounce, but if f use two
ounces, it'll be better’ Or they think they can look at it and Just pour
sorne in and go, ‘That's an ounce, And you go, 'No, that was a cup!'”

~Moreis not only nt better; it could even be dangercus, creafing firmes
that irritate the mucous mernbranes and lurgs of animals and staff. But
the temnptation to stray from manufacturer’s recommendations i5 5o great
that Fleischer often receives questions from clierts wonderlng if it would
be okay to heighten the concentration of the solution.

Residues can give animals mouth ulcers and scrotal dermatitis; -

floor surfaces can also be a casualty of improper dilution, says Flels-

Punchstack

cher, “You can actually change what the product does by adding more,”

- shesays. “With some of our products, you can actually make the fioors

sticky. And if you don't rinse off the surface, that floor will actually
hold organisrns, and it will contaminate your floor”

Todd has solved the problem of averuse by purchasing dispensers
that deliver precise measurements for every chernical in the shelter—
even the ones used in the contrnerclal-grade dishwasher and the wash-
ing machine. “All they have to do Is push a button and it fills the bot-
tes,” says Todd, who buys the dispensers from local disinfection
product suppliers. "And when they load the washing machine, they
shut it, turn it on, and then they push two buttons and that loads the
correct amount of detergent and the correct amount of bleach. ... So
we take out the human element.”

Precision in following recommended eontact times Is no less im-
portant to ensuring the efficacy of the product, says UC Davis Mad-
die's Shelter Medicine Program director Kate Hurley, who has seen
some shelter staff just apply the product and rinse it right off. That
sort of drive-by cleaning ds understandable given all the tasks to be
done in a shelter, she says, “but just swiping it on and swiping it off
is kind of a big waste of time.”

And though some quaternary armonium products carry the claim
of being a one-step cleaner/disinfectant, reading the fine print usual-
ly elicits a recommendation to apply the product twice if a surface Is
sotled: once to clean and then once again to disinfect. (See “Being
Chermically Balanced Is No Guarantee” on page 22.}

VWHERE TO GET MORE SAFETY BFO: It took centuries of risk-taking
and experimentation to develop solutions that kill deadly germs with-
out killing people and anirnals in the process. But even today, anything
that dishfectsis still a potentiabsource of injury. “The stronger the chem-

" ical, the less user-friendly it is,” says Chris Quintan of Animal Hea]th Tech-

nolegy. “We're organisms, too.
Before using any product, research its effect on animals and peo-

ple by combing through product literature or consulting with the man-
ufacturer, Quaternary ammoniums and sodium hypechlorite are rel-
atively safe when used correctly, but they still carry precautions.
Phenois, the chemical used in Lysol, are effective germ-killers but are
toxic to cats and reptiles and should always be avoided.

You can usually identify the kind of strength you're dealing with
by the warnings and directlons for handling on the bottle Jabel. But
the best way o really get a grip on the dos and don'ts of chemical us-
ageisto checkout the materials safety data sheets {MSDS), which are
overseen by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration. These
sheets should be pasted in your facility or kept in notebooks for staff
reference; in addition, staff should be supplied with the necessary pro-
tection equipment. Manufacturers often post MSDS on their web-
sites, but you can also find thern through general database searches,
using many of the links listed at www.lpi.com/msds/index htmi#What.

. When you're examining safety information, think about the crea-
tures in your shelter who won't be able to don masks or gioves in the
face of the harshest chemicals or strongest difutions, and choose your
preducts accordingly. Remember that rinsing well is key to prevent-
ing irTitations on the sensitive parts of animals who tend tolick what-
ever’s in their path, whether it’s the bars of the cage cr the belly that

has rubbed up against them.
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Bemg[Chemlcally Balanced
s No Guarantee.

A cleaning a day keeps the bugs at bay, but the question s,
how mugch cleaning should you do—and how frequently?

ISEASE PROBLEMS IN THE ANIMAL CARE FACILITY
-} can’t be controlled by magic potions. Sofutions, unfortumately,

 are only part of the solution.
“Just basic cleaning is reatly as effective as anything you

can do says Colin Parrish, a Cornell University virologist who stud-

ies parvoviruses. "It may not remove the very tast particle, but I think
that's very difficult in a shelter situation anyway. ... Your main goal, [
think, 15 to sort of reduce the viral load in the environment. Se nor-
mal hygiene and cleanliness are 90 percent of the battle.”

Even those who peddie the products agree. “Picking your preduct3s,
quite frankly, the easiest part of the whote thing if somebody knows what

they're lcoking for,” says Chrls Quinlan of Anirmal Health Technology.

“The other part to infection control is employees—the pmtocol that they
use to clean and disinfect, but also their eyes. They need to be taught to
recognize the clinical signs of a sick anfmal and then isolate.”

The more people understand how germs are transmitted, the more

conscientious they tend to be in the way they handle animals, apply
disinfectants, and follow other recommended disease control prac-
tices. The attention to such detalls is critical; the range of products
used by shelters that report success in their disease control rneasures
is testament to the fact that the bug battle involves far more than what's
in the bottle, An informal survey of shelters regarding thelr cleaning
protocols ylelded as many answers as there were respondents, includ-
ing arnong themn the following: ’

A 2 humane society in Arizona that stearn-cleans once a week and ro-
tates disinfectants every three months, using ZEP Micronex, Top
Performance Wintergreen, and Envirccide;

an animal control agency in North Carolina that uses a hypochlo-
rite praduct in the kennels and Ready-to-Use TB-Cide Quat in the
cat area;

® a humane soclety in California that uses a degreaser and bleach in
the dog runs and NutraQuat in the cat area;

a private shelter in Rhode Island that uses KennelSol regularly and
a degreaser and bleach only cccasionally;

# and a humane society/annnal control agenicy in Maryland that us-
esa quaternary ammonium product ca.iled Sentricide throughout
the factity.

Probably more irportant than what these shelters are using, though,
is how they are using it. And there’s no defined formula for disinfec-
Hon that wilt apply o every facility and every situation, Cleaning pro-
tocols depend on many variables, Including staffing levels, facility size,
construction materials, animal intake nurmbers, and differences in dis-

ease prevatence from region to region. Depending on the conditions,
some shelters “detaif-clean” every day, cleaning first with a detergent
and then disinfecting with bleach. Others clean and disinfect with a
quaternary ammenium each day, degrease once a veek, and use bleach
only in the Isolation or quarantine areas. Still others emplay a combi-
natien of all three throughout the shelter—scrubbing with a quater-
nary ammoniurn every day and degreasing and bleaching weekly.

However you decide to detail-clean, your regular regimen should
follow these basic principles:

HELP THE AMIMALS TAKE COVER. What makes cleaning in the shel-
ter so difficult Is the very fact that it's a shelter for Hve belngs, not a
building full of tnanirnate objects. Trying to do right by those beings
includes both giving them a clean space and ensuring their comfort—
and the cleaning process can make these two goals seem like cornpet-
ing notions. But they don’t have to be. As long as you are ensuring you
have a safe spot in which to place animals while you clean, whether
it's a temporary carrler or a bank of clean, empty cages, you can min-

imize the stress that cleaning would otherwise present.

Your furry charges should never be in a kennel or cage while you
are spraying or hosing, but there are other options. You can put ani-
rnals on the other side of a double-sided kenmel or cage if you're ucky
enough to have such a setup. You can use carriers for animals while
you clean, but you have to designate a carrler for each animal to use
throughout his stay or else disinfect between each use—a process that
can be fairly labor-Intensive if you do it thoroughly. (Some shelters
simplify this process by using cardboard carriers, labeling them with
the names of eats, and sending cats home in their own carrlers when
they get adopted.} Or you can clean out a few kennels and cages at a
time and transfer anirnals from dirty kennels inte clean ories—a com-
mon practice but not a particularly efficlent one.

The practce of moving arimals from cage to cage daily is poten-
tially problematic in another way: It has sometirnes been blamed for
the spread of disease. For that reason, and because of understalfing,
some shelters without much space choose to spot-clean cat cages dur-
ing an animal’s stay, each day providing fresh newspapers, towels, food
bowls, and litter and gently wiping down surfaces with paper towels.
Thorough cleaning and disinfection is saved for later, when the cage
has become dirty or when the cat s adopted, suthanized, or moved
to another holding area. )

Tni the best-case scenario, two spaces are reserved for each ammal—
an idea that many people tend to shy away from, fearing backlash from
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members of the public who won't understand why the shelter ¢
nizes even when half the cages are empty. But in the grand  §
scheme of disease control, keeping reasonably sized popula-
tions in the shelter is going to save more lives in the long term,
not only making the cleaning process faster but lessening the
chances for cross-contarnination. ]

“The more cats you have in a given space, the more up-
per respiratory infection you have also,” says Kate Hurley, di-
rector of the Maddies Shelter Medicine Program. "So I think decreas-

_ing the density of catsis a very, very important tool to keep thern healthy
as well as to make cleaning more efficient and more humane for the
cats, It's really traumnatlc if you think about how much cats tend to hate
getting grabbed and put in a cage and taken to the vet. And these cats
are already stressed out, and imagine belng grabbed every single day,
packed in a carrier and stacked in a wobbly stack or cut in the hall,

where it's stinky and dogs are barking, and then having your cage cleaned
and then getting cramimed back in it.

“It's just really problematic for cats. And even apart from that, just
getting cat density down to half the level—and having the cats be
healthy and less stressed—is going to make them get adopted out
faster, and ultimately allow the shelter to help just as many if not more
cats and have the cats be happler in the process.”

TAKE OUT THE TRASH AND SOAK THE IMPLEMENTS. Putting lit-
ter-—and other soiled materfal—in its place is the first step inn proper
disinfection. The presence of organic materfal can reduce or negate the .
effectiveness of disinfectants by neutralizing its killing power or by sur-
rounding the pathogen and preventing contact with the solution.
Food crumbs, spilled fitter, newspaper liners, and towels should all

be removed from cages and kennels. Hosing debrls down the drain
risks splattering invistble microbes on the walls and ceilings, so even
feces must be removed by hand before the spraying begins.

Tricks for speeding up the cleaning process or tontrolling

an outhreak include turning cardboard sandwich boats
k- _into food bowls and using cardboard soda flats, shirt
boxes, or food trays as ltter pans. Easily disposed of
and eastly replaced, these itemns just need to be large
enough for a cat to move around in; no Kitty likes o
" have to do yoga to'try to do his bathroom duties.
. Cafeterfa-style steam table pans can also serve as litter
hoxes, Made of stainless steel, they are available from cafete-
ria supply companies or through Animal Care & Equipment
Services (ACES). Because they are easy to disinfect, stainless steel
food bowls are also the dish of choice; plastic dishes and litter box-
es are too casily nicked by little toenails and teeth, creating secret
bunkers for germns in the eracks and erevices.

A comnmercial dishwasher can help disinfect these items, but it

won't clean them. Dishes and pans should be scrubbed first before

taling the plunpe into the machine, says veterinarian Bing Dilts of San
Frandsco Animaf Care and Control. Shelters not fucky enough to pos-

sess a dishwasher can mirnic the process by turning large drums into

a makeshift scrubbing and soaking system. Using one pair of drums
for litter pans and another pair for reusable bowls and toys, shelter
staff ean first scrub dtems in & drum filled with a detergent/degreaser,
then rinse themn, and then place them i another drum full of disin-
fectant for ten minutes before rinsing again.

“Toys and soft comfort ftems should be disinfectable; they can ei-
ther be washed before being placed with a new anirnal or sent home

with adopters.

FUT DISPOSABLE—OR DISINFECTABLE—TOOLS AT YOUR DIS:
POSAL. Sporiges and rags are a microbe’s idea of heaven; they are porous
and Inviting to infectious agents. "Contarninated cleaning tocls can be
a common cause of poor results with germicides and sanitizers,” wrote
"Fom Bach in the October 2001 issue of Infection Control Today {"Chern-
ical Management Involves Worker Safety and Fconornics”), “Clean tcols
not only must be free of visible soil, they must be free of bacterfa”
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For general surface cleaning, Bach recommends disposable cloths or
paper towels that recuce the opportunity for auss-contamination. Teols
with smoother, harder surfaces, including stiff-bristled brushes, help with
more heavily sofled areas and can he eastly cleanied between uses.

Keeping several brushes in a bucket of diluted disinfectant allows

you to scrub bt one cage with the first brush; you can dip the brush

back inte the bucket to disinfect while you use the second brush on
the second cage; and so on. Using a hose-end sprayer to apply deter-
gents and disinfectants reduces the tirme it takes to spread the sclution
around, but you still need to scrub all surfaces, including the doors,
floors, walls, resting boards, and cage ceilings.

If you spot-clean during the day or if your shelter just changes the
litter boxes, Bners, and food of feral cats during their holding periods,
you should clean litter sccapers between boxes by using the same buck-

(SINFECT g

et-dipping process as described above. Otherwise, moving straight
from one box to another will serve as a surefire way to spread con-
tarninants among cats, since mary pathogens are shed through feces.

LEARN THE RUB ON HOW TO SCRUB. The preducts in your cherni-
cal arsenal need to do battle with three things: dirt, germs, and grease.
And no one procuct will take care of it all, except these that are too
expensive or too unsafe. Quaternary ammoniums are good cleaners
and good disinfectants, but only the pricey high-concentrate prod-
ucks are capable of killing or inactivating most germs a shelter has to
contend with. Bleach is cheap and kills even the most resistant mi-
croorganisens like parvovirus, but it doesn’t have the suefactant prop-
erties necessary to lift dirt and residue. And degreasers cut through
the filmy layers that disinfectants can't touch.




So what is a poar kermel tech to do? Inevitably, you'll have to use
more than one product to get the job done. Because bleach is corro-
sive to equipment and irritating to humans and anirnals alike, some
experts recormnmend reserving it for critical situations. “Bleach is a great
disinfectant, but it doesn't clean well and will eventually eat through
your cages,” writes Bilts in a presentation she compiled on-cleaning
and disinfection. “The fumes are also harmifid to employees and arii-
mals if it is used in high concentrations. This said, ] don't recornmend

getting rid of bleach, but using it in certain areas only: jsolation wards

and on cages that were contarninated with a known problern {like par-
vo, kennel cough, panfeukopenta).”

- Some shelters choose to use bleach in all areas, perhaps twice a week
instead of every day. Either way, a bleach treatment must be preceded
by a detergent scrubdown and a thorough rinsing, wrote Michael

McCagg in the March 2003 issue of Cleaning & Maintenance Manage-
ment Onine: “Bleach can make sorne soil transparent, leading a clean-
er to think he/she has actually cleaned a surface when in fact the soil re-
malns.” If you choose not to use bleach at all, it's critical to buy a product
with high disinfection properties to use at Jeast in the isolation areas and
in areas you know have been contarninated by parvovirus or sormething
strnilarly resistant, (See “The Preduct Claim Game” on page 14.)
“Some shelters use quats daily and then once a week degrease and
bleach, and I think that would be a very reasonable protocol in & dog
ward in a shelter that didn't have a lot of parvo problems,” says Hur-
ley. “And then if you started having troubie with parvo, that would be
when you'd want to mave over to more routine use of bleach—or to

a quat that has parvocidal activities.”
Fven though quaternary ammontumn products are often sold as




one-step detergent/disinfectants, they will not adequately disinfect in
the presence of a heavy soll load, Dirt and debris will turn disinfec-
tion with a quat into a two-step process. “The quats can be applied as
4 ome-step cleaner for a very lightly soiled cage,” says Hurley, “but for
a heavily soifed cage, they really need to be cleaned first and then dis-
infected either with a quat or a bleach.”

Degreasing on a regular schedule—whether twice a week, once a
week, or once a month, depending on the conditions—wilt help re-
mave the slimy ftms that ittle wet noses annd sticky paws leave behind.
Detergents often don't remove these layers, which can serve as sub-

strates for breeding microorganisins.

GIVE IT A GOOD RINSE. Sorne labels carry the claim that no rinsing
is required, and technically that may be true In the mock testing situ-
atlons set up by product researchers, But it's better to be safe than sor-
ry, for the sake of both people and animals. Animals may develop
" mouth ulecers, scrotal dermatitis, or othér irritations if they lick or lie
on disinfectant residue,

Rinsing is necessary for another reason: if you don't do it, your
whole disinfection process may be a wash. Not only can: chemicals re-
act with each other to create noxious furnes; certain combinations
ray also negate the overall effect you're trying to achieve. Some de-
tergent procucts can inactivate quaternary ammoniums and reduce
the activity of bleach sotutions, so It's smart to wash away one prod-
uct cormnpletely before applying another.

{Juinlan provides another perspective—one from a more macro-
scopic fevel than s usually accorded to microbes. For the very reason
that the invisible beasts are Invisible, disinfectant users often forget

they're there, But while scrubbing brings germs to the surface, and dis-
infecting kills many or most of them, the dirt may cling for dear life
unitil squirted down the drain. “People ask me all the time, Dices your
product need to be rinsed away?” And I tel thern, "Well, no, it doesn't
need to be rinsed away, but it's designed to be rinsed away—that's part
of the physical action of the dirt and germs, " says Quinlan, “If the
gerrns Were as big as cockroaches, they wouldn't be asking me.

Virclogist Colin Parrish of Cornell University agrees, “My attitude,
frankly, Is that I think that tot water and plenty of it Is probably most
effective—{as well as] deterpent,” he says, adding that vigorous clean-
ing can help wash away parvovirus, “Cnce it goes down the drain, then
it'snot a concern for you.”

Some shelters might prefer not to use water that is stearning hot,
for fear of burning staff or animals. But as long as antmals are moved
away from areas that are being cleaned and staff are properly equipped
with protective gear, a weekly or monthly steam-clean can't hurt and
may help dislodge the hardiest rematning bugs from their hiding places.

Experts on the HSUS Animat Services Consultation (ASC) team
somnetimes recommend that shelters consider purchasing an electric
hot-water pressure-washing systern, which can hasten cleaning as weil.
as reduce filmy buildup on cage surfaces. But there’s still no substitute
for elbow grease, “Pressure washers donot ... eliminate the need for the
weeldy degreasing of cage surfaces,” wrote ASC tearn membersin a re-
cent report. “All degreasing agents should be used in conjunction with
some type of mechanical action, efther scrubbing or pressure washing.”

Whatever system you use, you should always ensure housing ar-
eas are dry before putting animals back into their clean quarters.

' B
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August 16, 2010

SUBJECT:  Penalty Calculation for Advanced Products Technology, Inc.
' Docket No. FIFRA-07-2008-0036

FROM: Mark K. Lesher
Case Review Officer
Pesticides Branch

TO: Chris R. Dudding

Attorney, Office of Regional Counsel

The following information supports the appropriateness of the U.S. Environmental
Profection Agency, Region 7's assessment of a civil penalty in regard to the subject
administrative action. The proposed penalty was calculated based on the facts of the case, on the
size of Advanced Products Technology’s (APT’s) business, the effect on APT’s ability to
continue in business and the gravity of the violation, and pursuant to the July 2, 1990,
Enforcement Response Policy for the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act

(FIFRA).

Section 14(a)(1) of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)
provides for the assessment of a civil penalty of not more than $5,000 for each violation against
any commercial applicator who violates any provisions of said Act. The Civil Monetary
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, increased the maximum civil monetary
penalties under FIFRA to $6,500 for all violations which take place after March 15, 2004
through January 12, 2009, and to $7,500 for all violations thereafter. In determining the amount
of the civil penalty, Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA requires the Agency to consider the
appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business of the person charged, the effect on the
person’s ability to continue in business, and the gravity of the violation.

The Enforcement Response Policy (ERP) is designed to provide fair and equitable
treatment of the regulated community by ensuring that similar enforcement responses and
comparable penalty assessments will be made for comparable violations. Furthermore, the
policy aims to serve as a deterrent from future violations of FIFRA The ERP states that a civil
penalty is the preferred enforcement remedy for most violations. A civil penalty is appropriate
where the violation (1) presents an actual or potential risk of harm to humans or the environment;
(2) was apparently committed as a result of ordinary negligence (as opposed to criminal
negligence), inadvertence, or mistake; and the violation involves a violation under the Act by any
registrant, commercial applicator, “for hire” applicator, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other
distributor (no prior warning is required by FIFRA for violators in this category).

The ERP states that the determination of the penalty amount is made according to a five
stage process in consideration of the FIFRA Section 14(a)(4) criteria. These steps are (1)
determination of the gravity or “level” of the violation using Appendix A of the ERP; (2)
determination of the size of business category for the violator, found in Table 2 of the ERP; (3)




use of the FIFRA civil penalty matrices found in Table 1 of the ERP to determine the dollar
amount associated with the gravity level of violation and the size of business category of the
violator; (4) further gravity adjustments of the base penalty in consideration of the specific

- characteristics of the pesticide involve, the actual or potential harm to human health and/or the
environment, the compliance history of the violator, and the culpability of the violator, using the
“Gravity Adjustment Criteria” found in Appendix B, and (5) consideration of the effect that
payment of the total civil penalty will have on the violator’s ability to continue in business.

Respondent Information

APT (Respondent) is a Missouri corporation incorporated on December 29, 2003, and is
active and in good standing. According to our review of Respondent’s publicly available
financial information, Respondent’s annual sales were unknown. Therefore, in accordance with
the ERP, the Respondent’s size of business is determined to be unknown and was placed in

Category L!

Summary of Alleged Violations

Respondent violated Section 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(a)(1)(A), by
distribution or sales of a unregistered pesticide. Four counts were documented of sales to a
customer on four different occasions in August, September, October, and December 2007, Five
counts were documented of distributions to a customer on five different gccasions in January,

February, March, May, and July 2009,

Penalty Calculations

Gravity Level: The gravity of the violation and the size of the business are considered in
the FIFRA Civil Penalty Matrices shown in Table 1. Each cell of the matrix represents the
Agency’s assessment of the appropriate civil penalty, within the statutory maximum, for each
gravity level of a violation and for each size of business category.

~ Size of Business: In order to provide equitable penalties, the civil penalties generally
decrease as the size of the business decreases, and vice versa. Size of business is determined
from a company’s gross revenues from all sources during the prior calendar year, If the revenue
data for the previous year appears to be unrepresentative of the general performance of the
business, an average of the gross revenues for the three previous years may be used. Further, the
size of business and gross revenue figures are based on the entire corporation rather than a
specific subsidiary or division of the company which is involved with the violation. According
to our review of Respondent’s publicly available financial information, Respondent’s annual
sales were unknown. Therefore, in accordance with the ERP, the Respondent’s size of business

is determined to be unknown and was placed in Category 1.

! From ERP: “When information concerning an aileged violator’s size of business is not readily available, the
penalty is to be calculated using the Category I size of business. The Category I size of business will remain the
base penalty value unless the violator can establish, at their expense and to the Agency’s satisfaction, that it should

be considered in a smaller size of business category.”




Determination of Dollar Amount Associated with Gravity Level and Size of Business:

Ability to Continue in Business/Ability to Pay: Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA requires the
Agency to consider the effect of the penalty on Respondent’s ability to continue in business
when determining the amount of the civil penalty. EPA will generally not collect a total civil
penalty which exceeds a violator’s ability to pay. The Enforcement Response Policy (ERP)
states that it can be assumed that the respondent has the ability to pay at the time the complaint is
issued if information concerning the alleged violator’s ability to pay is not readily available. The
Respondent has been notified in the civil complaint of its right under the statute to have its
ability to continue in business considered in the issue of ability to pay/ability to continue in
business in his answer to the civil complaint, or during the course of settlement negotiations.
Respondent’s vzolatlon was not identified as the result of Respondent seeking compliance

assistance.

Summary of Proposed Penalties

Statutory Violation - Section 12(a)(1)(A) - It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any of
the provisions of section 12 of FIFRA. A penalty calculation was done for four counts of this
violation for sales on four different dates of an unregistered pesticide product.

Level of Violation - Level 2

Violator Category - Section 14(a)(1) - Respondent Advanced Products Technology is a producer
of pesticides.

Size of Business- Category I (unknown)

Base Penalty — For counts 1-4, $6,500 (based on above criteria, the Civil Penalty Matrix and the
Civil Monetary Inflation Adjustment Rule); for counts 5-9, $7,500.

Gravity Adjustments

Pesticide Toxicity - Value is 2. The pesticide alleged to have been sold in counts 1-4 contains
the active ingredient iodine, and the pesticide alleged to have been sold in counts 5-9 contains
the active ingredient sodium hypochlorite, which puts each pesticide into the Toxicity Category I

and should bear the signal word “Danger”.

Harm to Human Health - Value is 3. There is a potential for harm to human health. Active
ingredient in each pesticide can cause skin, eye, and respiratory damage, and it is corrosive.

Environmental Harm - Value is 3. There is a potential for harm to the environment. The active
ingredient in each product is toxic to fish.

Violative History - Value is 0 for all counts. Respondent had no prior violations.”> (Prior

% Nots, in assessing the violative history for Advanced Products Technology, Inc., EPA Region 7 did not attribute to
the company prior violations by FRM Chem., In¢., a corporation owned/operated by the same principals, from the




violations afe assessed a point value).

Culpability - For counts 1-4, value is 2. Violation resulting from negligence. For counts 5-9,
value is 4, based on knowing/willful nature of violation.

No other gravity adjustments are appropriate,

The base penalty for the administrative Complaint is $6,500 for each of counts 1-4 and $7,500
for each of counts 5-9, and the total gravity points add up to 10 for counts 1-4, and to 12 for
counts 5-9. Following the Gravity Adjustment Criteria, a value of 10 results in the issuance of
the base penalty, with no adjustments, and a value of 12 results in a 10% upward adjustment, but
the base penalty of $7,500 for counts 5-9 is already at the statutory maximum, so no adjustment
is made for counts 5-9. Since no gravity adjustments are appropriate, Respondent was assessed a
proposed penalty of $63,500 for the Administrative Civil Complaint.

same physical place of business, and selling some of the same products, including one or both of the products at
issue in this matter.




FIFRA CIVIL PENALTY CALCULATION WORKSHEET

ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE POLICY for FIFRA - Reference

RESPONDENT: Advanced Products Technology, Inc.

ADDRESS: P.0.Box 207 or P.O. Box 1656
50 Highline Drive
Washington, MO 63090

Prepared By: Mark K. Lesher

Count 1 Count 2 Count 3 Count 4
Steri-Dinesoldto | Steri-Dine soldto | piefiine sold Me“-ﬁ'"e'm d1o
; W Chemicals | Ly
Appendix A LW Chemicals en | LW Chemicals on 3 e,mtca s 1§2 z,nfgvgigg
82707, Invoice | 928/07, Tnvoice | JRPyse No- 0. 2215,
No. 21965, No. 22011,

1. Statutory Violation

Sec. 12(a)(1)(A)

Sec. 12(a)(1)(A)

Sec. F2(a)(1)(A)

See, 12¢2)(1)(A)

2, FITS Code 1AA 1AA 1AA 1AA

3. Violation Le;vel 2 2 2 2
Appendix C - 'Fable 2 - Size of Business Category

4, Violator Category * § 14{a)(1) § M@)1) § 1(@)(1) § 14a) 1)

§ L4(a)(1) or § 14(2)(2)

5. Size of Business Category 1 I I I
Appendix C - Table 1 - FIFRA Civil Penalty Matrix

6. BASE PENALTY $6,500 $6,500 $6.500 56,500
Appendix B - Gravity Adjustménts

7a. Pesticide Toxicity 2 2 2 2

7b. Human Harm 3 3 3 3

7c. Environmental Harm 3 3 3 3

7d. Compliance History - 0 0 i} ]

7e. Culpability 2 2 2 2

7f. Total Gravity Adjustment Value 19 i0 10 16

(add items 7a - 7¢)

Appendix C - Fable 3 - Adjustments

7g. Percent Adjustment _None None None None

7h. Doltar Adjustment None None None Nore
8. Final Penalty** {item 7h from item 6) $6,500 56,500 $6,500 36,500

Combined Total Penalty {total of all columns for line 8, above)

* Section 14(a)(t) of FIFRA - Any regisirant, commercial applicator, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other distributor who viclates any provision of
this subchapter may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of ot more than $5,000 for each offense.

Section 14(a)(2) of FIFRA - Any private applicator or other person not incfuded in paragraph (1) who viclates any provision of this subchapter
subsequent to receiving a written warning from the Administrator or following a citation for a prior violation, may be assessed a civil penalty by the
Administrator of not more than $1,000 for each offense, except that any applicator not included under paragraph (1) of this subsection who holds or
applies registered pesticides, or use dilutions of registered pesticides, only to provide a service of controlling pests without defivering any unapplied
pesticide to any person so served, and who violates any provision of this subchapter may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of not

more than $500 for the first offense nor more than $1,000 for each subsequent offense.

**The final penalty in each column of line 8 cannot exceed the statrtory maximum.




FIFRA CIVIL PENALTY CALCULATION WORKSHEET

ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE POLICY for FIFRA - Reference

RESPONDENT: Advanced Products Technology, Inc.

Prepared By: Mark K. Lesher

ADDRESS: P.O. Box 207 or P.O. Box 1656
50 Highline Drive-
Washington, MO 63090
Count 5 Count 6 Count 7 Count 8
. Sodium Sadinm Sodium Sodium
A@e—_@—'}&é Hypochlorite Hypochlorite Hypochlorite Hypochlorite
Solution Solution distributed | Solution Solution
distributed to to FCHS on ’ distributed to distributed to
FCHS on 1/27/09, | 2/03/09, Packing FCRHS on 3/25/09, | FCHS on 527/09,
Packing Slip No. Slip No. 11355 Packing Slip No. Packing Slip No,
11354 11364 11376

1. Stamtory Violation

Sec. 12(a)(1)(A)

Sec. 12(2)(1)(A)

Sec. 12(a)(1)(A)

Sec, 172{a)(1)(A)

2. FITS Code 1AA 1AA 1AA 1AA
3. Violation Level 2 2 2 2
Appendix C - Table 2 - Size of Business Category
4. Violator Category * § Ld(a)(1} § 14(a)(1} § 14D § 1))
§ 14(a)(1) or § 14(a)(2)
5. Size of Business Category I I I I
Appendix C - Table 1 - FIFRA Civil Penaliy Matrix
6. BASE PENALTY $7,500 $7.500 $7,500 $7,500
Appendix B - Gravity Adjustments
7a. Pesticide Toxicity 2 2 2 2
7b. Human Hammn 3 3 3 3
7e. Environmental Harm 3 3 3 3
7d. Compliance History 0 0 ¢ 0
7e. Culpability 4 4 4 4
7f. Total Gravity Adjustment Value 12 12 12 12
(add items 7a - 7¢)
Appendix C - Table 3 - Adjustments
7g, Percent Adjustment None None None None
7h. Dollar Adjustment Nene None None None
8. Final Penalty** (item 7h from item 6) $7.500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

Combined .Totaf Penalty (total of all columns for line 8, above)

* Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA - Any registrant, commercial applicator, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other distributor who viclates any provision of this
subchapter may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of not more than $5,000 for each offense.

Section 14{a)(2) of FIFRA - Any private applicator or other person not included in paragraph (1) who viclates any provision of this subchapter subsequent to
receiving a written waming from the Administrator or following a citation for a prior viclation, may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of not

more than $1,000 for each offense, except that any applicator not included under paragraph (1) of this subsection who holds or applies registered pesticides, or
use dilutions of registered pesticides, only to provide a service of controffing pests without delivering any unapplied pesticide to any person so served, and who
violates any provision of this subchapter may be assessed a civil penally by the Administrator of not more than $500 for the first offense ner more than $1,000

for each subsequent offense.

*#The final penalty in each column of line 8 cannot exceed the statutory maximum.




FIFRA CIVIL PENALTY CALCULATION WORKSHEET
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE POLICY for FIFRA - Reference

RESPONDENT: Advanced Products Technology, Inc.  Prepared By: Mark K, Lesher

ADDRESS: P.C. Box 207 or P.O. Box 1656
50 Highline Drive
Washington, MO 63090
Count 9
. Sodium
Appendix 4 - Hypochlorite
Solution
distributed to
FCHS on 7/14/09,
Packing Slip No.
11385
1. Statutory Violation Sec. 12(a)(1)(A)
2. FTTS Code ‘ 1AA
3. Violation Level ' 2
Appendix C - Table 2 - Size of Business Category
4. Viclator Category * § Ldfa)(1)
§ Ma)y1) or § 14(a)(2)
5. Size of Business Category 1
Appendix C- Table 1 - FIFRA Civil Penalty Mairix
6. BASE PENALTY | $7,500
Appendix B - Gravity Adjustments
Ta. Pesticide Toxicity 2
7b. Human Harm 3
7¢. Environmental Barm 3
7d. Compliance History 0
7e. Culpability 4
7. Tolal Gravity Adjustment Value 12
(add items 7a- Te) -
Appendix C - Table 3 - Adjustments
Tg. Percent Adjustment None
7h. Dollar Adjustment None
8. Final Penalty** (item 7h from: item 6) $7,500
Combined Total Penalty (total of all colummns for line 8, above) $63,500

* Section 14(a)(F)} of FIFRA - Any registrant, commercial applicaior, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other distributor who violates any provision of this
subchapter may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of not more than $5,000 for each offense.

Section 14(a)(2) of FIFRA - Any private applicator or other person net incleded in paragraph (1) who violates any provision of this subchapter subsequent to
receiving a written wamning from the Administrator or following a citation for a prior viclation, may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of not
more than $1,000 for each offense, except that any applicator not included under paragraph (1) of this subsection who holds or applies registered pesticides, of
use dilutions of registered pesticides, only to provide a service of controlling pests without delivering any unappfied pesticide to any person so served, and who
violates any provision of this subchapter may be assessed a civil penalty by the Administrator of not more than $500 for the first offense nor more than $1,600

for each subsequent offense.

**+The final penatty in each column of line 8 cannof exceed the statutery maximum.




